JAN 11 1999

IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA

CLERK, SUPREME GOURT CASE NO. 94673 Ву\_ Chief Deputy Chark

THE STATE OF FLORIDA,

Petitioner,

-vs-

BERNARD EVANS,

Respondent.

ON PETITION FOR DISCRETIONARY REVIEW FROM THE DISTRICT COURT OF APPEAL OF FLORIDA, THIRD DISTRICT

### BRIEF OF PETITIONER ON JURISDICTION

ROBERT A. BUTTERWORTH Attorney General Tallahassee, Florida

LARA J. EDELSTEIN Assistant Attorney General Florida Bar No. 0078591 Office of the Attorney General Appellate Division 110 S.E. 6th Street Fort Lauderdale, FL 33301 Telephone: (954) 712-4659 Facsimile: (954)712-4761

##

#### INTRODUCTION

Petitioner, THE STATE OF FLORIDA, was the prosecution in the trial court and Appellee in the District Court of Appeal of Florida, Third District. Respondent, Bernard Evans, was the Defendant in the trial court and the Appellant in the District Court of Appeal. The parties shall be referred to as they stood in the trial court. All references to the attached appendix will be designated by "App." followed by the appropriate letter and a colon to indicate the appropriate page number.

### CERTIFICATE OF TYPE SIZE AND STYLE

This brief is formatted to print in 12 point Courier New type size and style.

#### STATEMENT OF THE CASE AND FACTS

This is a petition for discretionary review of a decision of the Third District Court of Appeal which reversed the Defendant's conviction and sentence for second degree murder.

> Sylvia Kennedy Green ("Green") was identified by the State as a witness to the incident. Consistent with statement а she gave detectives at the scene of the crime, Green testified in her 1996 deposition that she did not see the defendant shoot the victim and that she did not know anything about the case. At trial, however, Green testified that the night before the victim was shot, defendant commented that he wanted to kill someone. She further testified that she witnessed the defendant shooting at the victim. Defense counsel objected to her testimony. The court sustained the objection and sidebar a At sidebar, conference was held. defense counsel argued that Green changed her testimony since the deposition and the changed testimony had not been disclosed to the defense.

> The court permitted the State to continue questioning Green regarding her statements to testified that when police. Green the detectives first took her statement she told them she did not see anything because she was She explained that she went to the afraid. police approximately one year after the deposition and told them that she saw the defendant shoot the victim. Defense counsel again moved for a mistrial on the ground that Green's changed testimony had not been disclosed to the defense and the court denied the motion. At the end of the State's case, defense counsel again renewed his motion for

> > 2

mistrial based on Green's testimony. The mistrial was denied.

At the close of the defendant's case, defense counsel again moved for a mistrial based on Green's testimony. At this point, a Richardson hearing was held. The court found no discovery violation and denied the motion for mistrial. Defendant was found guilty of second degree murder with a firearm and sentenced to fifteen years with a three year minimum mandatory term for the use of a firearm.

It has long been the law in this State that upon learning of a potential discovery violation the trial court has an obligation to conduct a <u>Richardson</u> hearing. <u>Richardson v.</u> <u>State</u>, 246 So. 2d 771 (Fla. 1971); <u>Jones v.</u> <u>State</u>, 514 So. 2d 432 (Fla. 4th DCA 1987). Moreover, the trial court's obligation is affirmative and a hearing must be conducted even where the defendant does not specifically request a hearing or mention <u>Richardson</u>. <u>Brown v. State</u>, 640 So. 2d 106 (Fla. 4th DCA 1994).

In the instant case, the trial court failed in this regard. First, it failed to conduct the hearing upon being advised that Green changed her testimony. Then, when the hearing was conducted, it was inadequate. <u>Richardson</u> requires that upon learning of a discovery violation the trial court question 1) whether the violation was inadvertent or wilful; 2) whether the violation was trivial or substantial; and 3) what effect the violation had on the defendant's ability to properly prepare for trial.

Under Florida's criminal discovery rule, the duty to disclose is continuous. Fla. R. Crim. P. 3.220(j); <u>Reese v. State</u>, 694 So. 2d 678

(Fla. 1997); Jones v. State, 514 So. 2d 432 (Fla. 4th DCA 1987). It is clear that the State was aware that Green had changed her testimony prior to trial, as evidenced by the line of questioning during this aspect of Green's direct examination. We hold that, in failing to disclose the change in testimony to the defense, the State failed to meet its obligations under Rule 3.220(j). Moreover, we find that the violation here was substantial and undeniably had a negative effect on defense counsel's ability to properly prepare for trial. At the time defense counsel was preparing for trial and assessing the evidence his client, there were against no eyewitnesses. Green's changed testimony immediately changed the type of case defense counsel was dealing with. With an eyewitness to the crime, defense counsel's strategy would surely be different. Thus, we hold that the trial court's failure to conduct a timely and adequate Richardson hearing requires reversal.

(App. A). The case was reversed for a new trial. This petition follows.

# **QUESTION PRESENTED**

. -

WHETHER THE DECISION OF THE LOWER COURT CONFLICTS WITH <u>Bush v. State</u>, 461 So. 2d 936 (Fla. 1984)?

### SUMMARY OF THE ARGUMENT

The decision of the Third District Court of Appeal conflicts with that of <u>Bush v. State</u>, 461 So. 2d 936 (Fla. 1984). The instant case holds that the trial court erroneously failed to conduct a <u>Richardson</u> hearing upon being advised of changed testimony and that changed testimony by a witness is a discovery violation. <u>Bush</u> holds that changed testimony does not support a motion for a <u>Richardson</u> hearing and does not rise to the level of a discovery violation.

#### ARGUMENT

This Court should accept jurisdiction in this case because the decision of the Third District Court of Appeal expressly and directly conflicts with that of <u>Bush v. State</u>, 461 So. 2d 936 (Fla. 1984). "Conflict between decisions must be express and direct, i.e., it must appear within the four corners of the majority decision." <u>Reaves v. State</u>, 485 So. 2d 829 (Fla. 1986).

In the instant case, Green's trial testimony differed from her 1996 deposition and her statement given to detectives at the scene of the crime. The Third District held that where the State failed to disclose the change in Green's testimony, it failed to meet its obligations under Rule 3.220(j), Fla. R. Crim. P. Once the trial court was advised of Green's changed testimony, according to the Third District, the trial court has an obligation to conduct a <u>Richardson<sup>1</sup></u> hearing. Further, the Third District found that the State committed a discovery violation in failing to disclose the change in testimony. (App. A).

In <u>Bush</u>, an investigator stated in his deposition that Charlotte Grey, a clerk from a nearby convenience store which had been visited by Bush, had not identified any photographs. At

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup> <u>Richardson v. State</u>, 246 So. 2d 771 (Fla. 1971)

trial, the investigator testified that Grey did identify Bush's photograph during the photo lineup. This Court held that the prosecutor's failure to inform the defense of this change of testimony is not a discovery violation. This Court explained that when testimonial discrepancies appear, the witness' trial and deposition testimony can be laid side-by-side for the jury to consider in order to discredit the witness and is favorable to the defense. Thus, changed testimony does not rise to the level of a discovery violation and will not support a motion for a <u>Richardson</u> inquiry.

Since the Third District's opinion in the instant case directly and expressly conflicts with the majority decision in <u>Bush</u>, this Court should accept jurisdiction. *Reaves*.

8

### CONCLUSION

WHEREFORE, based on the preceding authorities and arguments, Petitioner respectfully requests that the Court accept jurisdiction to review this cause.