ORIGINAL

IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA

$\mathbf{F}_{\mathbf{s}}$	IL 310 J. V		D	
	EB 🎺	/		
r	CD &	1999	И	
CLERE	(, \$UPF	EME	OURT	
Strief Deputy Clerk				

CASE NO. 94,673

THE STATE OF FLORIDA,

Petitioner,

-versus-

BERNARD EVANS,

Respondent.

ON PETITION FOR DISCRETIONARY REVEIW FROM THE DISTRICT COURT OF APPEAL OF FLORIDA THIRD DISTRICT

BRIEF OF RESPONDENT ON JURISDICTION

LAW OFFICE OF JOHN H. LIPINSKI Florida Bar No. 151805 1455 N.W. 14th Street Miami, Florida 33125 (305) 324-6376

INTRODUCTION

Petitioner, THE STATE OF FLORIDA, was the prosecution in the trial court and Appellee in the District Court of Appeal of Florida, Third District. Respondent, Bernard Evans, was the Defendant in the trial court and the Appellant in the District Court of Appeal. The parties shall be referred to as they stood in the trial court. All references to the attached appendix will be designated by "App." followed by the appropriate letter and appropriate page number.

CERTIFICATE OF TYPE SIZE AND STYLE

This brief is formatted to print in 14 point Time New Roman size and style.

STATEMENT OF THE CASE AND FACTS

The Respondent accepts as true and correct the Statement of the Case and Facts as stated (p. 2-4) in Petitioner's Brief.

QUESTION PRESENTED

Ι

WHETHER THE DECISION OF THE LOWER COURT CONFLICTS WITH *BUSH V. STATE*, 461 So.2d 936 (Fla. 1984)?

SUMMARY OF THE ARGUMENT

The decision of the Third District Court of Appeal does not expressly and specifically conflict with that of Bush v. State, 461 So.2d 936 (Fla. 1984). In Bush a witness did not change from deposition "that she did not see the defendant shoot the victim and that she did not know anything about the case" to someone who "witnessed the defendant shooting at the victim". In *Bush*, the witness did not change from someone who "did not know anything about the case" to someone who "testified that the night before the victim was shot, defendant commented that he wanted to kill someone". <u>Bush</u> did not concern a situation where the witness "went to the police approximately one (1) year after the deposition and told them that she saw the defendant shoot the victim (which information was not imparted to the defense) <u>Bush</u> did not deal with a situation where the same witness changed from "no eyewitnesses" to "an eyewitness to the crime". Bush, thus, does not expressly and directly conflict with a decision of this Court (Bush).

ARGUMENT

I

THE DECISION OF THE LOWER COURT DOES NOT CONFLICT. WITH *BUSH V. STATE*, 461 So.2d 936 (Fla. 1984)

This Court should deny jurisdiction as the decision of this Court in *Bush v. State*, 461 So.2d 936 (Fla. 1984), does not expressly and directly conflict with the instant opinion. As stated by this Court in *Reaves v. State*, 485 So.2d 829, 830 (Fla. 1986), "conflict between decisions must be express and direct, <u>i.e.</u>, it must appear within the four corners of the majority decision".

A comparison of the facts in the instant case and <u>Bush</u>, supra, clearly shows no express or direct conflict between the decisions.

In <u>Bush</u>, the discrepancy between deposition and trial testimony "arose from defense counsel having asked two different questions". In the instant case, the change was from deposition where the witness "did not see the defendant shoot the victim and that she did not know anything about the case" to trial where the same witness "testified that the night before the victim was shot, defendant commented that he wanted to kill someone" and

"that she witnessed the defendant shooting at the victim". The change was thus both from no eyewitness to an eyewitness and from no inculpatory statement the night before to an extremely inculpatory undisclosed statement allegedly made by Mr. Evans.

Mr. Evans submits that the District Court was correct in holding "It has long been the law in this State that upon learning of a potential discovery violation the trial court has an obligation to conduct a *Richardson* hearing". The state has not contested the District Court's finding (concretely supported by the Record) that, at trial, "defense counsel argued that Green changed her testimony since the deposition and the changed testimony had not been disclosed to the defense". *Bush* does not recite any facts of that trial as to objections or trial court proceedings and, thus, does not conflict with the holding "that upon learning of a potential discovery violation the trial court has an obligation to conduct a *Richardson* hearing".

The instant decision found "First, it (trial court) failed to conduct the hearing upon being advised that Green changed her testimony." As argued, Bush contains no facts showing defense objections or trial procedure.

The instant opinion also holds "when the hearing was conducted, it was inadequate." <u>Bush</u> does not deal with the adequacy of a <u>Richardson</u> hearing.

<u>Bush</u> does not deal with a situation in which a non-witness became an eyewitness. Here, the District Court found "Green's changed testimony immediately changed the type of case defense counsel was dealing with.

With an eyewitness to the crime, defense counsel's strategy would surely be different."

<u>Bush</u> did not deal with a defendant's previously undisclosed inculpatory statement. Here, Green, at deposition "did not know anything about the case". At trial she "testified that the night before the victim was shot, defendant commented that he wanted to kill someone". Rule 3.220(b)(1)(c) mandates disclosure of "any oral statements made by the defendant". As argued in the District Court, the non-disclosure of the Defendant's statement, by itself, would compel Reversal. Again, this issue did not arise in <u>Bush</u>.

The Florida Rules of Discovery are submittedly to avoid "trial by ambush". Counsel submits that there can be no clearer example of "trial by ambush" than in the instant case where a non-witness becomes an eyewitness <u>and</u>, at trial, a previously undisclosed inculpatory statement of the defendant "suddenly appears".

If the State were correct, "trial by ambush" would become common where witnesses (both State <u>and defense</u>) could, with no consequence to the

parties, change (to 180 degree) their testimony from deposition to trial. Trial proceedings would be needlessly extended as in more and more cases inconsistent depositions would be read (some at great length or entirely) to the jury to show ever more frequent changes between deposition and trial testimony.

The obligation to avoid a "trial by ambush" exists on both sides. The reasoned, logical and fairness engendering opinion of the District Court emphasizes, reaffirms and holds that belief. There, too, there is no conflict with <u>Bush</u>.

Factually, there is no conflict with the holding in <u>Bush</u>. The <u>Bush</u> facts are radically different.

Legally, there is no conflict with <u>Bush</u> as <u>Bush</u> does not contradict the <u>Richardson</u> holding (the crux of the instant opinion) that "upon learning of a potential discovery violation the trial court has an obligation to conduct a <u>Richardson</u> hearing".

Mr. Evans respectfully submits that there is no express and direct conflict between the instant opinion and <u>Bush</u> and that this Honorable Court should decline to accept jurisdiction.

CONCLUSION

Based upon the foregoing facts, arguments, and citations of authority, the petition for discretionary review must be Denied.